ORIGINAL

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

Appeal from Newberry County
Honorable Eugene C. Griffith, Jr., Circuit Court Judge
Appellate Case Tracking No. 2012-212643

The State,

Appellant,

vs.

Woodrow Mozee,

Respondent.

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

WILLIAM M. BLITCH, JR.
Assistant Attorney General
S.C. Bar No. 15608

Post Office Box 11549
Columbia, SC 29211
(803) 734-3727

ATTORNEYS FOR APPELLANT

RECEIVED

JUL 30 2014

SC Court of Appeals

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

Appeal from Newberry County
Honorable Eugene C. Griffith, Jr., Circuit Court Judge
Appellate Case Tracking No. 2012-212643

The State,

Appellant,

vs.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- I. The magistrate properly denied the motion to dismiss based on the fact a videotape was produced which complied totally with section 56-5-2953(A) of the South Carolina Code and the circuit court erred in reversing this decision, vacating Respondent's conviction, and dismissing the case.
- II. The magistrate properly denied the motion to dismiss based on the Trooper marking the breath test as refused and the circuit court erred in reversing this decision, vacating Respondent's conviction, and dismissing the case under section 56-5-2950 of the South Carolina Code.
- III. The magistrate properly denied the motion to dismiss the ABC violation for an open container because a violation of South Carolina Highway Patrol Policy does not go to the admission of the evidence, but only its weight and the circuit court erred in reversing this decision, vacating Respondent's conviction, and dismissing the charge as a violation of this Policy.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Trooper Turner arrested Respondent for driving under the influence (DUI) and an open container violation on January 8, 2011. Respondent proceeded to trial before the Honorable Ronald C. Halfacre, Magistrate in Newberry County. Respondent was represented by Pete G. Diamaduros and the State was represented by Assistant Solicitor Rosemerry Felder-Commander. Respondent was convicted of both charges on July 15, 2011.

Respondent filed an appeal to the Court of Common Pleas on July 27, 2011. The Honorable Eugene C. Griffith, Jr., heard the appeal on March 12, 2012. The parties were represented by the same counsel. After hearing argument, Judge Griffith vacated Respondent's conviction and dismissed the charges against Respondent by Order filed April 20, 2012. The State filed its Notice of Appeal from this Order on May 15, 2012.

ARGUMENT

- I. **The magistrate properly denied the motion to dismiss based on the fact a videotape was produced which complied totally with section 56-5-2953(A) of the South Carolina Code and the circuit court erred in reversing this decision, vacating Respondent's conviction, and dismissing the case.**

The circuit court erred in finding the State failed to produce a complete videotape and failed to comply with the provisions of section 56-5-2953(A) of the South Carolina Code. The circuit court improperly added requirements to the section and erred in vacating Respondent's conviction and dismissing his case on this ground. The videotape produced, as found by the magistrate court, complies fully with the statute and, therefore, the magistrate court properly denied the motion to dismiss. This Court should reverse the circuit court's decision and reinstate Respondent's conviction.

Section 56-5-2953(A) of the South Carolina Code requires:

A) A person who violates Section 56-5-2930, 56-5-2933, or 56-5-2945 must have his conduct at the incident site and the breath test site video recorded.

(1)(a) The video recording at the incident site must:

(i) not begin later than the activation of the officer's blue lights;

(ii) include any field sobriety tests administered; and

(iii) include the arrest of a person for a violation of Section 56-5-2930 or Section 56-5-2933, or a probable cause determination in that the person violated Section 56-5-2945, and show the person being advised of his Miranda rights.

S.C. Code Ann. § 56-5-2953(A) (Supp. 2011)(emphasis added). Section 56-5-2953(B) of the South Carolina Code requires the officer to produce the videotape or submit an affidavit explaining the failure to produce the videotape. See S.C. Code Ann. § 56-5-2953(B) (Supp. 2011) (“Failure by the arresting officer to produce the video recording required by this section is not alone a ground for dismissal of any charge made pursuant to Section 56-5-2930, 56-5-2933, or 56-5-2945 if the arresting officer submits a sworn affidavit . . .”).

“The cardinal rule of statutory construction is a court must ascertain and give effect to the intent of the legislature.” State v. Scott, 351 S.C. 584, 588, 571 S.E.2d 700, 702 (2002) (citing Charleston County Sch. Dist. v. State Budget and Control Bd., 313 S.C. 1, 437 S.E.2d 6 (1993)).

All rules of statutory construction are subservient to the maxim that legislative intent must prevail if it can be reasonably discovered in the language used. A statute’s language must be construed in light of the intended purpose of the statute. Whenever possible, legislative intent should be found in the plain language of the statute itself.

State v. Pittman, 373 S.C. 527, 561, 647 S.E.2d 144, 161 (2007) (internal citations omitted).

“The legislature’s intent should be ascertained primarily from the plain language of the statute. Words must be given their plain and ordinary meaning without resorting to subtle or forced construction which limits or expands the statute’s operation.” State v. Dupree, 354 S.C. 676, 693, 583 S.E.2d 437, 446 (Ct. App. 2003) (internal citation omitted). “Where the language of the statute is clear and explicit, the court cannot rewrite the statute and inject matters into it which are not in the legislature’s language.” City of

Camden v. Brassell, 326 S.C. 556, 561, 486 S.E.2d 492, 495 (Ct. App. 1997) (citing Timmons v. Tricentennial Comm'n, 254 S.C. 378, 175 S.E.2d 805 (1970)).

The language of section 56-5-2953 is clear and unambiguous. It delineates what is to be included in the video of the incident site.¹ The statute clearly states the video recording at the incident site must “not begin later than the activation of the officer’s blue lights.” The section makes no reference to the video recording having to begin immediately upon the officer seeing a violation or upon the officer manually turning on the camera. The clear, unambiguous language of the statute solely requires the video to begin upon activation of the officer’s blue lights. The reading proposed and utilized by the trial court to find error and to dismiss the case injects requirements into the statute that were not placed in the statute by the legislature.

In this case, the Trooper testified he was travelling on Highway 773 and witnessed Respondent driving his pick-up truck left of center. He said as he approached a turn in the road, he attempted to manually turn on the camera in his car. The Trooper testified the camera takes a moment to activate when you turn it on manually, as opposed to beginning automatically with the initiation of his blue lights. In this case, the camera was initiated, at the latest, upon the activation of the blue lights. (Audio Recording of Magistrate’s Trial). Counsel for Respondent, however, maintained the video tape was deficient because it did not include a recording of everything the trooper witnessed and did not include the portion of Respondent’s driving the Trooper attempted to obtain by manually turning on the camera. (3/12T.2-3; 11-12; R. 7-8; 16-17).

¹ Respondent never challenged whether the incident site videotape included the field sobriety tests being performed, his arrest, or the reading of his Miranda rights.

The videotape began upon the activation of the Trooper's blue lights and included all components of the incident site required by section 56-5-2953(A)(1). Counsel for Respondent even concedes the video began with the Trooper's blue lights. (3/12T.11; R. 16). Any failure to record the behavior of Respondent prior to the initiation of the blue lights merely goes to the weight of that evidence and not its admissibility under section 56-5-2953. Further, the failure to record what he has no obligation to record under the statute is not a basis for dismissal under City of Rock Hill v. Suchenski, 374 S.C. 12, 646 S.E.2d 879 (2007).

Finally, if the circuit court's interpretation is followed, it would lead to an absolutely absurd result because the officer or trooper would be required to anticipate a stop before having the evidence of one so as to record all aspects of the individual's driving. Basically, the circuit court's ruling would require the cameras in the officer's vehicle to be recording non-stop while the officer is using the vehicle. This is an absurd result clearly not intended by the Legislature. The fact the Legislature did not intend constant videotaping, or even videotaping prior to the officer making the determination he was going to stop an individual, is highlighted by the fact the statute requires only that the camera must be activated when the officer activates his blue lights. Any other reading leads to an absurd result. See State v. Long, 363 S.C. 360, 364, 610 S.E.2d 809, 811 (2005) ("The legislature is presumed to intend that its statutes accomplish something."); Unisun Ins. Co. v. Schmidt, 339 S.C. 362, 368, 529 S.E.2d 280, 283 (2000) (finding courts will reject an interpretation of a statute leading to an absurd result clearly unintended by the legislature); State v. Elwell, 396 S.C. 330, 336, 721 S.E.2d 451, 454

(Ct. App. 2011) (“The statute must be interpreted with realistic circumstances and rationales in mind.”).

The circuit court committed clear error in finding the recording provided was insufficient. As a result, the court erred in vacating Respondent’s conviction and dismissing the DUI charge on this ground. This Court should reverse the circuit court’s determination and reinstate Respondent’s conviction.

II. The magistrate properly denied the motion to dismiss based on the Trooper marking the breath test as refused and the circuit court erred in reversing this decision, vacating Respondent's conviction, and dismissing the case under section 56-5-2950 of the South Carolina Code.

The circuit court erred in finding Trooper Turner violated SLED policy when he marked Respondent's test as a refusal. As the Magistrate found, Trooper Turner provided ample testimony demonstrating why he marked Respondent's test as a refusal instead of an incomplete and was in full compliance with SLED policy. Finally, nothing in section 56-5-2950 provides for the dismissal of the charges based on a violation even if one occurred.

Section 56-5-2950 provides in part:

(A) A person who drives a motor vehicle in this State is considered to have given consent to chemical tests of his breath, blood, or urine for the purpose of determining the presence of alcohol or drugs or the combination of alcohol and drugs. . . . A breath test must be administered at the direction of a law enforcement officer who has arrested a person for driving a motor vehicle in this State while under the influence of alcohol, drugs, or a combination of alcohol and drugs. At the direction of the arresting officer, the person first must be offered a breath test to determine the person's alcohol concentration. If the person is physically unable to provide an acceptable breath sample because he has an injured mouth, is unconscious or dead, or for any other reason considered acceptable by the licensed medical personnel, the arresting officer may request a blood sample to be taken. . . . The breath test must be administered by a person trained and certified by the South Carolina Criminal Justice Academy, pursuant to SLED policies.

.....
(J) Policies, procedures, and regulations promulgated by SLED may be reviewed by the trial judge or hearing officer on motion of either party. The failure to follow any of these policies, procedures, and regulations, or the provisions of this section, shall result in the exclusion from evidence of any test results, if the trial judge or hearing officer finds

that this failure materially affected the accuracy or reliability of the test results or the fairness of the testing procedure and the court trial judge or hearing officer rules specifically as to the manner in which the failure materially affected the accuracy or reliability of the test results or the fairness of the procedure.

S.C. Code Ann. § 56-5-2950 (A) & (J) (Supp. 2011).

The SLED policy relied upon by Respondent provides:

If an acceptable breath sample is not provided in two minutes, the instrument will display “Did the subject refuse?” When question is prompted, press the touch-screen icon, “Yes” or “No”. If “Yes” is answered, the instrument will print “REFUSED” by “SUBJECT SAMPLE”, after the final steps of the operational protocol are completed. This is considered a completed test and signature lines will be printed on the Breath Alcohol Analysis Test Report/Evidence Ticket. If “No” is answered, the test will abort and the instrument will print “INCOMPLETE SUBJECT TEST” on the Breath Alcohol Analysis Test Report/Evidence Ticket. An “INCOMPLETE SUBJECT TEST” reading, by itself, is not a refusal situation. (A “NO” should only be entered if the subject failed to provide an acceptable breath sample through no fault of his/her own.) In the event of an “INCOMPLETE SUBJECT TEST”, the breath test sequence may be repeated, except the advisement process is not required to be repeated. This is not a completed test and not signature lines will be printed.

SLED Policy, 8.12.5.L.2.f.VII (2009) (emphasis added).²

First, Trooper Turner did not violate the SLED policy by marking the test as a refusal and provided ample explanation for why he chose refusal over incomplete. It is entirely within the discretion of the Trooper whether to select “Yes” it was a refusal or “no” it was not a refusal and instead was an incomplete test. As the State pointed out, the policy specifically states: “A ‘NO’ should only be entered if the subject failed to provide

² The policy may be found at <http://www.sled.sc.gov/documents/IMPLIEDCONSENT/polproc/8125/200902108125.pdf>

an acceptable breath sample through no fault of his/her own.” In this case, Trooper Turner testified extensively regarding his belief Respondent was not trying to blow, was breathing in at times instead of breathing out, and was trying to avoid the test. (Audio Recording of Magistrate’s Trial). He indicated Respondent never asked for his inhaler, and Trooper Turner never noticed any wheezing or difficulty breathing by Respondent. Finally, Trooper Turner testified he considered the fact Respondent was able to blow enough for a continuous tone though not enough for a sample to be taken, but was then able to immediately launch into verbal attacks and rants without being out of breath. He testified he did not believe Respondent was trying.

As a result, there was clearly testimony in the record demonstrating Trooper Turner used his discretion in selecting “Yes” that Respondent refused the test, and the Magistrate Court properly denied the motion to dismiss. The circuit court, sitting as the appellate court, clearly interjected his factual determinations for those of the Magistrate instead of determining whether there was evidence to support the Magistrate’s finding. As shown above, there is clearly evidence supporting the Magistrate Court’s conclusion.

Additionally, the circuit court committed an error of law in its interpretation of SLED policy as well as section 56-5-2950. The circuit court found “under the circumstances of this case SLED Regulation 8.12.5.L.2.f.VII required the officer to answer “No” so the test could be aborted and a new test could be attempted.” As the State noted, nothing in the language of the SLED policy mandates a selection of “Yes” or “No” at any time. The only instruction in the SLED policy indicates “A ‘NO’ should only be entered if the subject failed to provide an acceptable breath sample through no fault of his/her own.” As a result, the circuit court erred in finding the policy mandated

any selection by the Trooper. As discussed above the evidence in the record amply demonstrated the Trooper exercised his discretion and in his opinion Respondent was refusing the test by failing to give a complete sample.

In addition, the circuit court misconstrues section 56-5-2950 to require dismissal of the charges. Nothing in this section provides for dismissal of the case even if a violation of the section or SLED policy is found. The extent of the remedy is the exclusion of the test result. Additionally, this determination is to be left to the trial judge or hearing officer, in this case the Magistrate Court Judge. He specifically found the issue, including whether Respondent was unable to perform the test or the Trooper correctly marked refusal, was for the jury and denied Respondent's motion. (Audio Recording of Magistrate's Trial). Accordingly, the circuit court incorrectly dismissed the case even if a violation could be found.

Further, any error in following policy and the selection made by Trooper Turner would inure to the weight of the evidence and not its admissibility. Defects in procedure generally do not affect admissibility. See, e.g., State v. Odom, 382 S.C. 144, 676 S.E.2d 124 (2009) (citing State v. Huntley, 349 S.C. 1, 562 S.E.2d 472 (2002)).

Respondent's counsel was able to fully cross-examine Trooper Turner regarding the breath test and his marking the test a refusal. He asked the Trooper about his comments in his notes that "During the two minute duration [Respondent] was unable to give a sufficient sample that resulted in refusal." Respondent testified regarding the circumstances of the test.

The judge instructed the jury that there was a right to refuse the breath test, and explained the jury may give whatever weight it chose to a refusal, if it found the refusal

to exist. (Audio Recording of Magistrate's Trial). As a result, the issue was clearly placed before the jury and it was for the jury to make a determination of who they believed and the weight ascribed to the refusal.

It is not error to admit into evidence a defendant's refusal to submit to a breathalyzer test. State v. Miller, 257 S.C. 213, 185 S.E.2d 359 (1971). Moreover, in light of the overwhelming evidence of his intoxication, Respondent was not prejudiced by the admission of his refusal to submit to the breathalyzer. See State v. Degnan, 305 S.C. 369, 409 S.E.2d 346 (1991). Accordingly, this Court should find the circuit court erred in vacating the conviction and dismissing Respondent's DUI charge because Trooper Turner exercised proper discretion, provided ample testimony in support of that discretion, and the Magistrate properly denied any motion to dismiss.

III. The magistrate properly denied the motion to dismiss the ABC violation for an open container because a violation of South Carolina Highway Patrol Policy does not go to the admission of the evidence, but only its weight and the circuit court erred in reversing this decision, vacating Respondent's conviction, and dismissing the charge as a violation of this Policy.

The circuit court erred in vacating Respondent's conviction for the ABC violation for an open container and in dismissing the charge. The Magistrate Court correctly allowed the evidence to be presented to the jury and correctly denied the motion to dismiss the charge because any violation only goes to the weight of the evidence and not its admissibility.

After pulling Respondent over on suspicion of DUI, Trooper Turner located what appeared to be an open container of liquor. The Trooper placed the bottle in front of the camera and described it on camera. The bottle indicated it was Rich & Rare Canadian Whiskey and was approximately three-fourths full. The Trooper testified it had the distinct odor of liquor. (Audio Recording of Magistrate's Trial). Trooper Turner poured out the bottle of liquor and disposed of the bottle. Respondent testified he did not know the bottle was in his coat pocket, but he never disputed whether it was alcohol. (Audio Recording of Magistrate's Trial).

The magistrate allowed the evidence to be presented to the jury and then denied Respondent's motion to dismiss the charge, which the Magistrate treated like a directed verdict motion. He found the State presented evidence regarding the open container and its contents and it was for the jury to determine whether they believed it was alcohol in the bottle. (Audio Recording of Magistrate's Trial).

The circuit court found South Carolina Highway Patrol Policy 300-15 provides “alcoholic beverages seized as evidence are to be placed in evidence bags and sealed with evidence tape and stored in an authorized area until the time of trial or time of disposal.” He found Trooper Turner failed to follow this policy and as a result had no evidence as to whether the liquid in the container was alcoholic liquor or any liquid containing a percentage of alcohol by volume. (Order of Circuit Court; R. 1-5).

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