THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

Appeal from Newberry County
The Honorable Eugene C. Griffith, Jr., Circuit Court Judge
Appellate Case Tracking No. 2012-212643

The State, Appellant

v.

Woodrow Mozee, Respondent

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

Pete G. Diamaduros
SC Bar # 7881
108 W. South Street
PO Box 643
Union, South Carolina 29379
Telephone: (864) 427-5657

ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT

RECEIVED

AUG 07 2014

SC Court of Appeals

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

ARGUMENT

I. The Circuit Court Judge properly overturned the conviction and dismissed the case based upon the fact that the videotape produced in court did not comply with Section 56-5-2953 of the South Carolina Code

The Circuit Court correctly found that the State failed to produce a complete videotape and failed to comply with the provisions of Section 56-5-2953 of the South Carolina Code. Appellant would have this Court believe that the Circuit Court improperly added requirements to Code Section 56-5-2953(A). In its initial brief, Appellant emphasizes the portion of Section 56-5-2953(A)(1)(a)(i) “not beginning later than the activation of the officer’s blue lights”. Respondent would agree that the section makes no reference to the video recording having to begin immediately upon the officer’s seeing a violation. Respondent would disagree with Appellant when Appellant asserts that the section would not require the video recording upon the officer manually turning on the camera. The clear, unambiguous language of the statute would lead a reasonable person to understand the intent of the statute and the intent of the statute would require that any recording whether manually activated or automatically triggered upon activation of the officer’s blue lights would need to be captured by videotape and provided to Respondent in discovery in order to afford him the opportunity to prepare an adequate defense..

The videotape provided did not record until the blue lights were activated. The officer testified that he manually activated the video to capture alleged conduct of Respondent utilized by the officer in determining probable cause. However, the officer subsequently became aware that the portion of critical evidence of conduct was not collected because the manual activation of the video failed or was delayed. The officer failed to account for this lack of video by affidavit or otherwise. In this case the officer elected to activate the video and made the conscious decision to press the button or flip the switch for manual recording. At this time the failure to provide the videotape that he attempted to record triggers the Affidavit provisions of 56-5-2953(B). The proper procedure would have been for the trooper to submit an affidavit indicating that his camera malfunctioned and did not capture the conduct that he attempted to capture. No such affidavit was submitted and dismissal was therefore warranted under City of Rock Hill vs. Suchenski, 374 SC 12, 646 SE2d 8779 (2007).

The cardinal rule of statutory construction is that a court must ascertain and give effect to the intent of the legislature. State vs. Scott 351 SC 584, 588, 571 SE2d 700, 702 (2002) (Citing Charleston County Sch. Dist. vs. State Budget and Control Bd., 313 SC1, 437, SE2d 6 (1993)).

All rules of statutory construction are subservient to the maxim that legislative intent must prevail if it can be reasonably discovered in the language used.

A statute's language must be construed in light of the intended purpose of the statute. Whenever possible, legislative intent should be found in the plain language of the statute itself.

State vs. Pittman, 373 SC 527, 561, 647, SE2d 144, 161 (2007).

“The legislature's intent should be ascertained primarily from the plain language of the statute. Words must be given their plain and ordinary meaning without resorting to subtle or forced construction which limits or expands the statute's operation (State vs. Dupree 354 SC 676, 693, 583 SC2d 437, 446)(Ct. App. 2003)

The language of Section 56-5-2953 is clear and unambiguous. It mandates the video recording at the incident site to “not begin later than the activation of the officer's blue lights” 56-5-2953(A) (1)(a)(I).

However, whenever a video is made or attempted to be made, it must be accounted for. Section 56-5-2953 (B) states that “failure by the arresting officer to produce the video recording required by this section is not alone a ground for dismissal of any charge made pursuant to 56-5-2930 if the arresting officer submits a sworn affidavit certifying that the video recording equipment at the time of the arrest or probable cause determination was in an inoperable condition”.

In this case no affidavit was prepared by the officer.

Appellant refers in its brief to an “absurd result”. Under the circumstances of this case the absurd result would be one whereby an officer manually activates his camera to gather evidence critical to his determination of probable cause of impairment prior to initiating a stop with the blue light, subsequently discovering that evidence was not captured due to equipment malfunction and then arguing that none of the evidence, whether incriminating or exculpatory, has to be provided to the Defendant because the statute does not require it to be provided. Unisun Insurance Company vs. Schmidt, 339 SC 362, 368, 529 SE2d 280, 283 (2000)(Finding courts will reject an interpretation of the statute leading to an absurd result clearly unintended by the legislature) State vs. Elwell, 396 SC 330, 336, 721 SE2d 451, 454 (Ct. App. 2011) (The statute must be interpreted with realistic circumstances and rationales in mind).

The Circuit Court clearly interpreted the statute as intended by the legislature and with a rational mind. The Court found the language to be plain, unambiguous and conveying a clear meaning, that meaning being that the legislature intended the manually recorded video evidence to be produced and not to just be testified to or written about in reports. The failure of the trooper to produce this VIDEO OR AN AFFIDAVIT REQUIRED BY 56-5-2953(B) (supp 2011) violated the statute and the Circuit Court Judge correctly overturned the conviction and dismissed the case.

“Our Appellate Courts have strictly construed Section 56-5-2953 and found that a law enforcement agency’s failure to comply with these provisions is fatal to the prosecution of a DUI case.” Town of Mt. Pleasant vs. Robert 393 SC 332, 346, 713 SE2d 278, 285 (2011) (citing City of Rock Hill vs. Suchenski, 374 SC 12, 17, 646, SE2d 879, 881 (2007) (holding that “dismissal of a DUAC charge is an appropriate remedy provided by Section 56-5-2953 when a violation of subsection (A) is not mitigated by subsection (B) exceptions”); (Murphy vs. State 392 SC 626, 630 709 SE2d 685, 687)(Ct. App. 2011) (recognizing the State’s noncompliance with Section 56-5-2953, which is not mitigated by a statutory exception, warrants dismissal)). “The legislature clearly intended for a *per se* dismissal in the event that a law enforcement agency violated the mandatory provisions of Section 56-5-2953.” *Id. at 348, 713 SE2d at 286.*

II. The Circuit Court Judge properly dismissed the case based upon the Trooper marking the breath test as a refusal when in fact it was an incomplete test under Section 56-5-2950 of the South Carolina Code and SLED Policy 8.12.5.L.2.f VII (2009)

The Circuit Court properly found that Trooper Turner violated SLED policy when he marked Respondent's test as a refusal.

Testimony in the record revealed that Respondent attempted to provide a proper breath sample once the machine gave the beep tone indicating it was time for the Respondent to blow. Testimony in the record revealed that Respondent attempted three separate blows of approximately 12 seconds, approximately 14 seconds, and approximately 10 seconds respectively. Respondent adamantly told Trooper Turner that he was not refusing and had blown all he could. Just as in the case of *Krystal Chisolm v. SCDMV*, 402 SC 593, 741, SE2d 42, (SC. App. 2013), in the case at hand there was a steady tone while Respondent blew on three separate attempts. Just as in *Chisolm*, the Magistrate, as the hearing officer in *Chisolm*, found that Respondent and *Chisolm* refused the breath test because no result registered.

The SLED policy at issue in this case is 8.12.5(L)(2)(f)(vii) (2009). This SLED policy states "A "NO" should only be entered if the subject failed to provide

an acceptable breath sample if there was no fault of his/her own". That policy does allow the trooper the option to mark this type situation as an incomplete test and to repeat the test which he chose not to do.

“Regulations authorized by the legislature have the force of law.

Faile v. SC Employment Security Commission 267 SC 536, 230 SC 2nd 219 (1976).

Although a regulations has the force of law, it may not alter or add to a statute.”

James G. Goodman v. City of Columbia 318 SC 488, 458 SE 2d 531 (S.C. 1995) .

In this case we are dealing with policies, but they need to have the force of law.

In *Chisolm* at page 47, this Court stated “We start with the proposition that when the breath test instrument emits a steady tone, the steady tone is an indication that the instrument is receiving a breath sample.” This Court went on to discuss the approach taken in other jurisdictions for guidance. Just as in *Chisolm*, a review of the record in this case and the video recording would reveal that the Respondent wanted to take the breath test, blew into the DataMaster and the instrument produced a steady tone for an extended period of time that would indicate to a reasonable person that sufficient air was going into the instrument. In this case, Trooper Turner did testify extensively regarding his “belief” that Respondent was not trying to blow and was trying to avoid the test. Trooper Turner also testified and had notes indicating that the defendant was elderly, was carrying an inhaler and that he believed the defendant was unable to give a

sufficient sample. This opinion held by the Trooper cannot override the video evidence and the recorded evidence in this case. A steady tone can be heard for three separate attempts ranging from 10 to 14 seconds. This would indicate that the Respondent was doing what he was suppose to do and that he was blowing into the instrument and not sucking from the instrument. The decision of Trooper Turner to mark this set of circumstances as a refusal is arbitrary and capricious and an abuse of his discretion. In Chisolm at page 50, this Court stated that “the instrument’s failure to register a test report in and of itself, absent some other facts, does not end the inquiry in determining whether the subject refused the breath test”. The Court further stated “ We find it fundamentally unfair under the facts herein to label as a refusal a situation where Chisolm blew for such an extended length of time with a steady tone by the instrument, absent any allegations of fault by Chisolm or any attempt to fake or thwart the test”.

The Appellant would have this Court find that the trooper’s abuse of discretion in this case should be overlooked due to what Appellant believes is overwhelming evidence of the Respondent’s intoxication. The most insulting thing that one human can do to another is call him a liar. In this case, the trooper was in essence calling Respondent a liar by telling him that he was sucking in when, in fact, Respondent was blowing into the datamaster, as evidenced by the “steady tone”. The trooper incorrectly categorized statements made by Respondent

during the testing process as “verbal attacks and rants”. However, Respondent’s statements clearly illustrate his disgust with indignation with the trooper calling him a liar and stating that the Respondent was not doing the simple tasks that he was being asked to do.

Section 56-5-2950 (J) provides for an exclusion of any evidence of the alleged refusal when policies, procedures and regulations promulgated by SLED are not followed, and such failure materially affects the fairness of the procedure. In the instant case the lower court allowed the evidence even though the Trooper abused his discretion by categorizing Respondent’s attempt as a refusal rather than an incomplete test, and thus failing to follow the appropriate incomplete test procedure . This should lead to a dismissal of the charge. Respondent was prejudiced, and the fairness of the procedure was materially affected because Respondent was deemed a fair and accurate Datamaster blow that could have provided Respondent exculpatory evidence of his sobriety.

III. The Circuit Court Judge properly overturned the conviction for the ABC violation for an open container based upon the violation of South Carolina Highway Patrol Policy.

The Circuit Court properly vacated Respondent's conviction for the ABC violation for an open container.

As stated by Appellant, Trooper Turner located what **appeared** to be an open container of liquor. The trooper placed the bottle in front of a camera and described it on camera. Appellant states that the Respondent never disputed whether the contents were alcohol.

By pleading not guilty and going to trial on the issue, Appellant did dispute that the contents were alcohol. The State in a criminal case is required to prove every element of any crime beyond every reasonable doubt. One element would be that the contents of the container were alcohol, not that the container appeared to be an alcoholic container, and contained a liquid with sufficient alcohol to make it illegal to carry in an open container. A container of O'Doul's non-alcoholic beer, by appearance and smell, could be mistakenly identified as an alcoholic beverage.

The Circuit Court properly found that South Carolina Highway Patrol policy 300-15 requires that any alcoholic beverage seized should be placed in an evidence bag and sealed with evidence tape and stored until trial. The trooper failed to comply with policy in this case.

The Circuit Court properly overturned the trial court conviction based upon the Magistrate allowing the Trooper to speculate that the liquid contained alcohol.

Since Respondent did not know that the container of liquid was in his jacket, he could not truthfully testify as to the contents. The legislature authorizes agencies to formulate policies to uniformly, efficiently and fairly implement the application of law.

The State doesn't attempt to convict someone of possessing drugs or other contraband without following their evidence policies and analyzing drugs for what they appear to be. We can only assume that different agencies and departments organized and existing in the State of South Carolina have policies and procedures for a purpose.

Drug analysis would be one, the alcohol in this case would be another, chain of custody policies and procedures would be others. What the State is saying in this case is that what the policy says does not matter. So all State agency policies are not relevant which would include SLED policies, DHEC policies, DSS policies, Highway Patrol policies. Why would the state have policies and why would time be taken to write them if they are not going to be followed? The purpose of a policy such as the one in this case would be so that the officer is not giving an opinion that he would not be qualified to give under Rule 701.

“Regulations authorized by the legislature have the force of law. *Faile v.*

SC Employment Security Commission 267 SC 536, 230 SC 2nd 219 (1976).

Although a regulations has the force of law, it may not alter or add to a statute.”

James G. Goodman v. City of Columbia 318 SC 488, 458 SE 2d 531 (S.C. 1995) .

In this case we are dealing with policies, but they need to have the force of law.

Some guidance is found in tort law where courts have ruled that policies can be

used to establish standards of care. The standard of care in a given case may be

established and defined by the common law, statutes, administrative regulations,

industry standards, or a Defendant’s own policies and guidelines. See Steinke v.

SC Dept. of Labor, Licensing and Regulation 336 SC 373, 387-89, 520 SE2d 142,

149-50 (1999). Tindell v. Columbia Ry., Gas & Elec. Co., 109 SC 34, 95 SE 109

(1918) stated that relevant rules of a Defendant are admissible in evidence in a

personal injury action regardless of whether rules were intended primarily for

employee guidance, public safety, or because violation of such rules may constitute

evidence of a breach of the duty of care and the proximate cause of injury.

Caldwell v. K-Mart Corp., 306 SC 27, 31 - 32, 410 SE2d 21, 24 (Ct. App. 1991)

stated that when Defendant adopts internal policies or self-imposed rules and

therefore violates these policies or rules, jury may consider such violations as

evidence of negligence if they proximately cause a Plaintiff’s damages.

By violating the Highway Patrol policy 300-15, the Trooper should not have been allowed to testify about a smell of alcohol that he could not and did not store

or have tested. Without being able to testify that the liquid contained a percentage of alcohol by volume, an element of the statute allegedly violated by the Respondent would be missing and a directed verdict should have been granted. Therefore, this Court should affirm the ruling of the Circuit Court and dismiss the charge of the ABC violation against the Respondent.

CONCLUSION

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